BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016 and 2015

CONTENTS

	Page No.
Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Basic Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	3
Statement of Activities	4
Statement of Cash Flows	5
Notes to the Financial Statements	6-11
Report Required by Government Auditing Standards:	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements	
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	12-13
Schedule of Findings and Responses	14



206 N. HARRISON • P.O. BOX 790 • CUSHING, OKLAHOMA 74023 • 918-225-4216 • FAX 918-225-4315

WALTER H. WEBB, CPA
JANE FRAZIER, CPA
CHARLES E. CROOKS, CPA
TRISHA J. RIEMAN, CPA
GABRIELLE CONCHOLA, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

January 23, 2017

To the Board of Trustees Pawnee County Public Programs Authority Pawnee, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pawnee County Public Programs Authority (PCPPA), a component unit of Pawnee County, Oklahoma, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Pawnee County Public Programs Authority as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

Pawnee County Public Programs Authority January 23, 2017

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Pawnee County Public Programs Authority, a component unit of Pawnee County, Oklahoma, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Pawnee County, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the changes in its financial position and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

PCPPA has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated January 23, 2017, on our consideration of the Pawnee County Public Programs Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Pawnee County Public Programs Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CBEW Professional Group, LLP

CBEW Professional Group, LLP Certified Public Accountants Cushing, Oklahoma

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION As of June 30, 2016 and 2015

		June 30, 2016		June 30, 2015
Assets:				
Cash and investments:				
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)	\$	1,678,587 \$		1,754,777
Temporary investments		1,011,207		508,682
Accounts receivable		137,721		153,661
Due from Pawnee County		~		81,201
Restricted assets:				
Bond fund/cash & investments (Note 3)		831,558		830,295
Capital assets:				
Buildings, improvements and equipment		5,916,917		5,916,917
Less accumulated depreciation		(997,930)		(800,763)
Total assets		8,578,060		8,444,770
Deferred outflows of resources:				
Total deferred outflows		-		<u> </u>
Current liabilities:		5.000		4.000
Accounts payable		5,308		4,308
Deferred rent revenue		542		542
Accrued interest payable		91,362		96,482
Current portion of revenue bonds payable Total current liabilities	_	320,000 417,212		305,000 406,332
A control title				
Long-term liabilities:		5,095,000		5,400,000
Revenue bonds payable (Note 3)		(320,000)		(305,000)
Less: current portion Total long-term liabilities	-	4,775,000		5,095,000
Total folig-term habilities	-	4,770,000	-	0,000,000
Total liabilities		5,192,212		5,501,332
	_		_	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Deferred inflows of resources: Total deferred inflows	_	_	_	
Net position:				
Net investment in capital assets		(176,013)		(283,846)
Restricted		831,558		830,295
Unrestricted		2,730,303	_	2,396,989
Total net position	\$ =	3,385,848	\$ =	2,943,438
Total liabilities and net position	=	8,578,060	=	8,444,770

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

		June 30, 2016	June 30, 2015
Revenues:			
Sales tax revenue (Note 1)	\$	863,694 \$	966,786
Rent Income	_	6,500	6,500
Total revenues		870,194	973,286
Expenses:			
Audit		5,100	4,100
Depreciation		197,167	197,167
Professional fees		-	1,950
Total expenses	-	202,267	203,217
Operating income (loss)	_	667,927	770,069
Other income and expense:			
Interest income		3,421	2,940
Interest expense		(226,438)	(238,441)
Loan costs		-	-
Trustee fees	_	(2,500)	(2,500)
Total other income and expense	-	(225,517)	(238,001)
Net income (loss)		442,410	532,068
Net position - beginning of year	-	2,943,438	2,411,370
Net position - end of year	\$	3,385,848 \$	2,943,438

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

		June 30, 2016	June 30, 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Cash Reimbursements	\$	- \$	-
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and			
contractors and other services		(5,100)	(6,050)
Other operating revenues	_	967,335	922,497
Net cash provided by operating activities	-	962,235	916,447
Cash flows from investing activities			
(Purchase) liquidation of investments		(502,525)	(2,180)
Interest income		3,421	2,940
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities	_	(499,104)	760
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Acquisition and construction of capital assets		_	_
Principal paid on debt		(305,000)	(295,000)
Interest expense		(231,558)	(243,358)
Trustee fees		(1,500)	(2,500)
Net cash provided (used) for capital and	-	(538,058)	(540,858)
related financing activities			
Net increase (decrease) in cash		(74,927)	376,349
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	•	2,585,072	2,208,723
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	\$	2,510,145 \$	2,585,072
Reconciliation of operation income to net			
cash provided by operating activities:			
Operating income (loss)	\$.	667,927 \$	770,069
Adjustments to reconcile operating income			
to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation		197,167	197,167
Change in assets and liabilities:			
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues		-	-
(Increase) decrease in due from Pawnee County		81,201	(81,201)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable		15,940_	30,412
Total adjustments		294,308	146,378
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	962,235 \$	916,447

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Management

Pawnee County Public Programs Authority (PCPPA) is a public trust created August 3, 1981 under the authority and pursuant to the provisions of Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1981, Sections 176-180.4, as amended in the Oklahoma Trust Act.

PCPPA by virtue of common control and dependence is a component unit of Pawnee County, Oklahoma. Prior to July 1, 1992, the Board of County Commissioners, acting as trustees for the Authority, provided management. On June 30, 1992, the Board of County Commissioners amended the Trust Indenture dated August 3, 1981 to provide for the appointment of trustees. A three-member board was appointed by the Board of County Commissioners to serve as Trustees of the Authority. Pawnee County maintains beneficial interest in PCPPA. The financial activities of Pawnee County and its other component units are not included in the financial statements of PCPPA.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the PCPPA are organized as a proprietary fund that is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of the fund are summarized by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that include its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses. A proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing facilities is financed through user charges. Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included in the balance sheet.

Financial activity is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Oklahoma Statutes authorize PCPPA to invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, passbooks, bankers' acceptances, and other available bank investments provided that all deposits are fully covered by approved securities pledged to secure those funds. In addition, PCPPA can invest in direct debt securities of the United States unless law expressly prohibits such an investment.

For financial statement presentation and for purposes of the statement of cash flows, PCPPA's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be; cash on hand, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit with a maturity date of three months or less. Debt instruments with a maturity date of more than three months are considered to be investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, PCPPA held unrestricted deposits of approximately \$2,689,794 and \$2,263,459, respectively, at financial institutions. PCPPA's cash deposits, including interest-bearing certificates of deposit, are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance (FDIC) or direct obligation of the U.S. Government insured or collateralized with securities held by PCPPA or by its agent in PCPPA's name.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investment Interest Rate Risk

PCPPA does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Investment Credit Risk

PCPPA has no policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation of state law as follows:

- a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State is pledged.
- b. Certificates of deposits or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.
- c. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.
- d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or school district.
- e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage Association.
- f. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments mentioned in the previous paragraphs (a.-d.).

The cash and investments held at June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

	Weighted Average			
Туре	Maturity (Months)	Credit Rating	Market Value	Cost
As of June 30, 2016		·		
Cash and investments				
Money Market	N/A	NA	\$ 1,678,587	\$ 1,678,587
Certificates of deposit	1.67	N/A	\$ 1,011,207	\$ 1,011,207
Total cash and investments			\$ 2,689,794	\$ 2,689,794
As of June 30, 2015				
Cash and investments				
Money Market	N/A	NA	\$ 1,754,777	\$ 1,754,777
Certificates of deposit	1.67	N/A	\$ 508,682	\$ 508,682
Total cash and investments			\$ 2,263,459	\$ 2,263,459

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk

PCPPA places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. PCPPA has the following of credit risk in 2016: 38% in Certificates of deposit (\$1,011,207) and 62% in Money Market accounts (\$1,678,587) and 2015: 22% in Certificates of deposit (\$508,682) and 78% in Money Market accounts (\$1,754,777).

2. Restricted Cash and Investments

The restricted bond fund cash and investments are the result of financial requirements of bond issues and consist of funds held in accounts with the Trustee bank. Under the terms and provisions of the Bond Indenture, these special accounts and reserve funds are maintained for the benefit of the holders of the bonds and are not subject to lien or attachment by any other creditors. These accounts and reserve funds are to be maintained so long as any bonds are outstanding. Monies contained in the accounts and reserve funds held by the Trustee are required to be continuously invested in authorized securities that mature not later than the respective dates when the funds shall be required for the purpose intended by the trust indenture. The County has levied a sales tax in which all related revenues are to be applied to the balance of the bond.

3. Fair Value Measurement

PCPPA's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable. PCPPA's estimate of fair value of all financial instruments does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying statement of financial condition. The carrying amount of these financial instruments approximates fair value of their short maturity.

GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted observable quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the GASB fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, PCPPA's assets at fair value as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

Assets	at	Fair	Value	as of	lune	30.	2016

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	 Total
CDs	\$ 1,011,207	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,011,207
Total assets at fair value	\$ 1,011,207	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,011,207

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2015

	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3	 Total
CDs	\$ 508,682	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 508,682
Total assets at fair value	\$ 508,682	_ _ \$	-	- \$	-	\$ 508,682

4. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

5. Inventories

Inventories consist of minimal amounts of expendable supplies held for consumption. The costs of inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed.

6. Capital Assets

Additions to the buildings and equipment are recorded at cost or, if contributed property, at their estimated fair value at time of contribution. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses; renewals and betterments are capitalized. The sale or disposal of fixed assets is recorded by removing cost and accumulated depreciation from the accounts and charging the resulting gain or loss to income. The Authority maintains a capitalization threshold of \$500. Depreciation for major movable equipment and building and improvements is computed on the straight-line method over useful lives of 5-20 years for equipment and 30 years for buildings and improvements.

7. Compensated Absences

PCPPA has no employees and thus does not provide sick leave or vacation. There is no recorded liability for compensated absences.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

8. Comparative Data

Comparative information for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in PCPPA's financial position and operations. Certain reclassifications have been made for comparability.

2. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in property and equipment.

		Balance 7/1/15		Additions		Deletions		Balance 6/30/16
Buildings & Improvements Equipment	\$	5,911,789 5,128	\$	-	\$	_	\$	5,911;789 5,128
Total Less accumulated depreciation Net	\$_	5,916,917 (800,763) 5,116,154	\$_	- (197,167) (197,167)	\$ =			5,916,917 (997,930) 4,918,987
		Balance 7/1/14	_	Additions	_	Deletions		Balance 6/30/15
Buildings & Improvements Equipment	\$	5,911,789 5,128	\$	-	\$_	- -	\$	5,911,789 5,128
Total Less accumulated depreciation Net	_{\$} -	5,916,917 (603,596) 5,313,321	s -	(197,167) (197,167)	·	-	- \$-	5,916,917 (800,763) 5,116,154

3. LONG-TERM DEBT

PCPPA's Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2009 were issued to fund construction of the Pawnee County jail. The County shall levy a \$0.01 sales tax as of January 1, 2011, which was approved by voters on October 13, 2009. Sales tax funding is to be used for the sole purpose of all related costs for the construction of the jail. 75% of the sales tax shall be collected through January 1, 2030. The remaining 25% of sales tax is to be collected until repeal.

PCPPA's long-term debt and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities are described below.

\$8,040,000 Series 2009 Sales Tax Revenue Bond dated Dec 1, 2010 due in annual installments of \$190,000 to \$1,150,000 through February 1, 2029 with interest payable semi-annually at 3.4% to 5.0%.

See Note 7 for subsequent event regarding the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2009.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2016 and 2015

3. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of PCPPA:

					Retired,	
			Balance		or Defeased	Balance
		Original	Outstanding		During	Outstanding
		Amount	6/30/15	Issued	Year	6/30/16
PCPPA:	_					
Series 2009 Debt	\$	8,040,000 \$	5,400,000 \$	-	\$ 305,000 \$	5,095,000
Total	\$_	8,040,000 \$	5,400,000 \$		\$ 305,000 \$	5,095,000

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending			
June 30,	Principal	Interest	Totals
2017	320,000	219,358	539,358
2018	330,000	208,478	538,478
2019	340,000	196,598	536,598
2020	355,000	183,678	538,678
2021	370,000	169,478	539,478
2022-2026	2,080,000	605,838	2,685,838
2027-2029	1,300,000	204,994	1,504,994
Total Liability	\$ 5,095,000	\$ 1,788,419	\$ 6,883,419

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

PCPPA is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability and torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. Property insurance coverage is being provided through the Association of County Commissioners of Oklahoma Self-Insurance Group.

5. CONCENTRATIONS

Approximately 99% and 99% of the Authority's revenues were derived from sales tax collections for June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Any significant change in sales tax appropriations by Pawnee County could have a significant impact on operations.

6. LEASE AGREEMENT

On February 4, 2013, PCPPA entered into a lease agreement with the Board of County Commissioners of Pawnee County. The lease term is for one year, with option to renew, and semiannual payments of \$3,250 are due May 30 and November 30 for each year the lease is in effect. PCPPA received \$3,250 in March 2016 for the building rental from February through July. Of the \$3,250 received amount, \$542 is considered unearned.

7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On September 15, 2016, PCPPA refinanced their Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2009 by unanimous vote of the Board. The new interest rate for the refinanced bond is 0.70% to 2.70%.

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
June 30, 2016



206 N. HARRISON • P.O. BOX 790 • CUSHING, OKLAHOMA 74023 • 918-225-4216 • FAX 918-225-4315

WALTER H. WEBB, CPA
JANE FRAZIER, CPA
CHARLES E. CROOKS, CPA
TRISHA J. RIEMAN, CPA
GABRIELLE CONCHOLA, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

January 23, 2017

To the Board of Trustees
Pawnee County Public Programs Authority
Pawnee, Oklahoma

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Pawnee County Public Programs Authority (PCPPA), a component unit of Pawnee County, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PCPPA's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 23, 2017. PCPPA did not present the Management's Discussion and Analysis required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PCPPA's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PCPPA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PCPPA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material weaknesses (Finding 2016-001).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PCPPA's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Pawnee County Public Programs Authority January 23, 2017

PCPPA's Response to Finding

PCPPA's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. PCPPA's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CBEW Professional Group, LLP

CBEW Professional Group, LLP Certified Public Accountants Cushing, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016-001. Internal Control - Material Adjusting Journal Entries

<u>Criteria</u>: The authority's management is responsible for internal controls over financial reporting. This responsibility includes the design and implementation of controls over the fair and complete presentation of the authority's annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) from trial balances derived from the authority's accounting records. For trial balances to be both complete and accurate, the authority must have effective internal controls over recording, processing, summarizing, and adjusting accounting data. As evidence of effective internal controls over accounting and financial reporting, there should generally be few, if any, material adjustments to the trial balances required that are detected and corrected solely as a result of the financial statement audit. In other words, authority management should not rely on the external auditor to detect and correct material misstatements in the books and records as part of its internal controls, but rather should have it own procedures designed and in place that are independent of the external auditor to provide reasonable, although not absolute, assurance that material misstatements will be detected and corrected in its trial balances prior to audit.

<u>Condition</u>: The authority's trial balances for the year ended June 30, 2016, required a number of material adjusting journal entries in order for the financial statements to be prepared in accordance with GAAP. These necessary adjusting entries, identified solely as a result of the financial statement audit, included such adjustments as the following: payments on bonds, interest expense, receivables and depreciation. This condition was also reported in 2015.

<u>Cause</u>: The Authority's Board has the necessary knowledge, expertise and education, relative to the complex nature of applying GAAP applicable to state and local authorities, to provide reasonable assurance that the trial balances used for preparing the GAAP financial statements are complete and accurate prior to audit. Management has relied on the external auditors to identify and correct a number of material misstatements in the trial balances. However, as required by professional standards, management had the capacity to review, understand and accept the adjusting entries proposed by the auditor in order to take full responsibility for them and the related financial statements.

Effect or Potential Effect: As a result of this condition, without assistance on its external auditors, the authority did not apply appropriate internal controls over the completeness and accuracy of the trial balances that are used in the preparation of its financial statements in accordance with GAAP. This condition can result in undetected and uncorrected material misstatements in the financial statements that are not detected by management and may also not be detected by the financial statement audit.

<u>Recommendation:</u> The authority should consider designing and implementing sufficient internal controls over the completeness and accuracy of trial balances by obtaining the necessary knowledge, expertise, and continuing education to apply GAAP in the development of working trial balances that will be used to prepare the authority's annual financial statements. This could be achieved through employment of qualified accounting staff or the outsourcing of these control activities to a qualified accounting firm other than the external auditor.

<u>Responsible Official's Response:</u> The authority concurs with the recommendation, and will strive to expand their knowledge and understanding to identify and correct material misstatements timely in order to prepare complete and accurate financial statements.